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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 

Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED) 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Item 1. Financial Statements. 

    
September 30,

2008    
December 31,

2007    
September 30,

2007  
     (in thousands, except share data)  

Assets       

Cash and due from banks    $ 260,358    $ 326,965    $ 202,237 
Unrestricted short-term investments      105,704      143,042      110,484 

Cash and cash equivalents      366,062      470,007      312,721 
Restricted short-term investments      213      242      241 
Securities available for sale      2,030,395      2,059,160      1,548,708 
Securities held to maturity (fair values approximate $9,195; $4,792; and $4,840)      9,195      4,792      4,840 
Loans and leases, net of unearned income      9,454,094      8,751,590      5,842,883 

Less: Allowance for loan and lease losses      105,575      88,569      58,687 
Net loans and leases      9,348,519      8,663,021      5,784,196 

Premises and equipment, net      177,219      179,740      110,372 
Foreclosed assets      10,671      11,927      10,331 
Accrued income receivable      43,363      46,765      33,600 
Bank-owned life insurance      353,864      344,578      270,398 
Goodwill      1,014,282      945,081      339,010 
Intangible assets with finite lives      56,658      58,274      19,648 
Investment in and receivables from unconsolidated entities      39,276      123,586      134,335 
Other assets      186,570      170,821      155,549 

Total Assets    $13,636,287    $13,077,994    $ 8,723,949 

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity       

Deposits:       

Demand    $ 1,228,255    $ 1,292,791    $ 887,657 
Interest-bearing demand      2,446,467      2,830,025      2,054,246 
Savings      712,930      713,984      417,997 
Time      2,962,563      2,750,867      1,592,698 
Time of $100 or more      1,843,926      1,357,452      1,025,763 

Total deposits      9,194,141      8,945,119      5,978,361 
Short-term borrowings      738,516      568,412      488,999 
FHLB borrowings      1,354,981      1,145,759      795,462 
Long-term debt      151,289      150,303      150,028 
Junior subordinated debentures      271,654      266,682      71,980 
Accrued interest, taxes, and expenses payable      63,957      60,869      43,373 
Deferred taxes      96,565      136,076      149,958 
Other liabilities      70,410      75,760      103,606 

Total Liabilities      11,941,513      11,348,980      7,781,767 
Shareholders’ equity:       

Common stock, $2.00 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized; Issued: 86,089,662 at 
September 30, 2008; 85,935,315 at December 31, 2007; and 52,206,918 at 
September 30, 2007      172,179      171,810      104,353 

Additional paid-in capital      1,044,338      1,038,894      349,275 
Retained earnings      516,290      522,268      503,613 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes of $20,479; $2,131; and $8,190, 

respectively      (38,033)    (3,958)    (15,059)
Total Shareholders’ Equity      1,694,774      1,729,014      942,182 
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity    $13,636,287    $13,077,994    $ 8,723,949 
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Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (UNAUDITED) 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Three Months Ended

September 30,   
Nine Months Ended

September 30,  

      2008     2007    2008     2007  
     (in thousands, except per share data)  

Interest Income:          

Loans and leases, including fees    $148,374    $107,585   $444,243    $312,825 
Securities:          

Taxable      21,331      17,598     65,521      48,633 
Tax-exempt      3,326      425     9,287      1,238 
Dividends      1,541      1,074     4,541      3,166 

Short-term investments      491      1,019     1,939      3,411 
Total interest income      175,063      127,701     525,531      369,273 

Interest Expense:          

Deposits:          

Interest-bearing demand      7,441      15,119     27,254      47,982 
Savings      1,116      869     3,954      2,922 
Time      41,236      30,128     124,094      86,814 

Short-term borrowings      3,179      5,033     9,368      12,805 
FHLB borrowings      13,120      7,106     39,104      16,236 
Long-term debt      7,709      3,372     23,256      9,955 

Total interest expense      73,801      61,627     227,030      176,714 
Net interest income      101,262      66,074     298,501      192,559 
Provision for loan and lease losses      17,704      2,414     41,306      6,347 
Net interest income, after provision for loan and lease losses      83,558      63,660     257,195      186,212 

Noninterest Income:          

Service charges on deposit accounts      11,968      7,378     34,823      21,035 
Vehicle origination, servicing, and securitization fees      2,200      3,658     7,698      11,564 
Asset management fees      7,405      5,235     19,161      14,638 
Income from fiduciary-related activities      1,977      1,594     6,500      4,937 
Commissions on brokerage, life insurance, and annuity sales      1,672      1,239     5,361      3,917 
Commissions on property and casualty insurance sales      2,636      2,556     9,604      9,589 
Income from bank-owned life insurance      3,719      2,765     10,651      8,064 
Net gain on sale of loans and leases      1,856      1,297     4,960      6,822 
Net realized loss on securities      (17,550)    0     (17,343)    (11,741)
Other      2,036      4,568     24,091      14,896 

Total noninterest income      17,919      30,290     105,506      83,721 
Noninterest Expenses:          

Salaries and employee benefits      49,140      35,518     142,258      104,634 
Occupancy      8,994      5,669     27,304      17,443 
Furniture and equipment      3,983      2,908     12,092      8,717 
Advertising and marketing      2,657      2,233     9,843      6,866 
Amortization of intangible assets      2,853      651     8,048      1,897 
Vehicle lease disposal      3,622      3,082     9,148      9,261 
Other      24,541      16,002     69,361      49,435 

Total noninterest expenses      95,790      66,063     278,054      198,253 
Income before income taxes      5,687      27,887     84,647      71,680 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes      (673)    7,994     21,065      21,243 

Net Income    $ 6,360    $19,893   $ 63,582    $50,437 

Earnings per share:          

Basic    $ 0.07    $ 0.38   $ 0.74    $ 0.97 
Diluted    $ 0.07    $ 0.38   $ 0.74    $ 0.97 

Cash dividends paid    $ 0.26    $ 0.25   $ 0.78    $ 0.75 
Average shares outstanding:          

Basic      86,010      52,174     85,956      52,132 
Diluted      86,033      52,221     85,992      52,208 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED) 
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Nine Months Ended

September 30,  
     2008     2007  
     (in thousands)  

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:     

Net income    $ 63,582    $ 50,437 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation, amortization, and accretion      19,908      11,707 
Provision for loan and lease losses      41,306      6,347 
Realized loss on available-for-sale securities, net      17,343      11,741 
Deferred income taxes      (21,163)    1,701 
Gain on sale of loans and leases      (4,960)    (6,822)
Gain on sale of foreclosed assets      (798)    (214)
Mortgage loans originated for sale      (143,946)    (79,403)
Proceeds from sale of mortgage loans originated for sale      140,501      81,647 
Loans and leases originated/acquired for sale, net of payments received      (85,023)    (297,188)
Net proceeds from sale of loans and leases originated/acquired for sale      0      252,493 
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance      (10,136)    (7,438)
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable      3,402      (2,556)
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payable      (1,663)    2,932 
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and taxes payable      4,751      (14,359)
Other, net      (32,189)    (31,783)

Net cash used in operating activities      (9,085)    (20,758)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:     

Net decrease in restricted short-term investments      29      33,292 
Activity in available-for-sale securities:     

Sales      17,322      333,366 
Maturities, repayments, and calls      482,266      286,955 
Purchases      (541,867)    (739,721)

Net increase in loans and leases      (577,106)    (280,236)
Cash flows received from retained interests      27,217      25,102 
Proceeds from bank-owned life insurance      850      1,438 
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets      9,697      3,509 
Acquisitions, net of subsequent divestitures      (68,146)    (3,114)
Additions to premises and equipment, net      (9,794)    (11,982)

Net cash used in investing activities      (659,532)    (351,391)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:     

Net increase in deposits      249,022      100,772 
Net increase in short-term borrowings      170,104      87,035 
Net increase in short-term FHLB borrowings      200,000      240,000 
Proceeds from long-term FHLB borrowings      200,000      275,000 
Repayment of long-term FHLB borrowings      (190,778)    (248,226)
Repayment of long-term debt      (14)    (8)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock      3,271      3,475 
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options      139      152 
Cash dividends paid      (67,072)    (39,111)

Net cash provided by financing activities      564,672      419,089 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED) (continued) 
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Net change in cash and cash equivalents      (103,945)    46,940
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1      470,007      265,781
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30    $ 366,062    $312,721

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information     

Cash paid for interest on deposits and borrowings    $ 228,693    $173,782
Income tax payments    $ 29,070    $ 19,256

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Activities     

Real estate acquired in settlement of loans    $ 8,569    $ 15,732
Interests retained in securitizations    $ 0    $ 47,920
Leases acquired in clean-up calls    $ 63,913    $ 22,682
Securities purchased, not settled    $ 0    $ 34,930
Cash dividends declared, not paid    $ 0    $ 13,574
Leases transferred from held for sale to held for investment    $ 238,351    $ 0



Table of Contents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (UNAUDITED)  
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Shares of
Common

Stock   
Common

Stock   

Additional
Paid-in 
Capital   

Retained
Earnings    

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)     Total  

Balance at January 1, 2007    52,080,419   $104,161   $ 345,840   $505,861    ($ 19,576)  $ 936,286 
Comprehensive income:                

Net income               50,437        50,437 
Change in unrealized loss on securities available for 

sale, net of taxes and reclassification adjustment of 
$7,632                 5,144      5,144 

Change in unrealized gain on recorded interests in 
securitized assets, net of taxes                 208      208 

Change in unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of 
taxes and reclassification adjustment of $(202)                 (835)    (835)

Total comprehensive income                   54,954 
Common stock and options issued under employee benefit 

plans (including related tax benefit of $152)    126,499     192     3,435         3,627 
Cash dividends declared ($1.01 per share)               (52,685)      (52,685)

Balance at September 30, 2007    52,206,918   $104,353   $ 349,275   $503,613    ($ 15,059)  $ 942,182 

Balance at January 1, 2008    85,935,315   $171,810   $1,038,894   $522,268    ($ 3,958)  $1,729,014 
Cumulative-effect adjustment relating to adoption of EITF 06-

4, "Accounting for Deferred Compensation and 
Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar 
Life Insurance Arrangements"               (2,488)      (2,488)

Comprehensive income:                

Net income               63,582        63,582 
Change in unrealized loss on securities available for 

sale, net of taxes and reclassification adjustment of 
$3,364                 (36,214)    (36,214)

Change in unrealized gain on recorded interests in 
securitized assets, net of taxes                 233      233 

Change in unrealized loss on cash flow hedges, net of 
taxes and reclassification adjustment of $2,098                 1,906      1,906 

Total comprehensive income                   29,507 
Common stock and options issued under employee benefit 

plans (including related tax benefit of $139)    154,347     369     3,041         3,410 
Adjustments relating to the Community acquisition            2,403         2,403 
Cash dividends declared ($0.78 per share)               (67,072)      (67,072)

Balance at September 30, 2008    86,089,662   $172,179   $1,044,338   $516,290    ($ 38,033)  $1,694,774 
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Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 
(Amounts in thousands, except as noted and per share data) 

NOTE 1. Accounting Policies 

The information contained in this report is unaudited. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current period 
classifications. In addition, Susquehanna revised the totals for net cash used in operating activities and investing activities in the Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. The reclassifications and revisions had no effect on gross revenues, 
gross expenses, net income, or the net change in cash and cash equivalents and are not material to previously issued financial statements. In the 
opinion of management, the information reflects all adjustments necessary for a fair statement of results for the periods ended September 30, 2008 
and 2007. The year-end condensed balance sheet data was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required 
by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Operating results for the three and nine-month periods ended 
September 30, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2008.  

The accounting policies of Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries ("Susquehanna"), as applied in the consolidated interim financial 
statements presented herein, are substantially the same as those followed on an annual basis as presented on pages 76 through 84 of the Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.  

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements. 

In October 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-3, "Determining the Fair Value of a 
Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active." FSP No. FAS 157-3 clarifies the application of FAS No. 157, "Fair Value 
Measurements," in a market that is not active. FSP No. FAS 157-3 was effective upon issuance, including prior periods for which financial 
statements have not been issued. Revisions resulting from a change in the valuation technique or its application shall be accounted for as a 
change in accounting estimate (FAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections," paragraph 19). The disclosure provisions of FAS No. 
154 for a change in accounting estimate are not required for revisions resulting from a change in valuation technique or its application. Adoption 
of FSP No. FAS 157-3 has had no material impact on results of operations and financial condition.  

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities." Statement No. 159 provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value and 
establishes presentation and disclosure requirements designed to facilitate comparisons between companies that choose different measurement 
attributes for similar types of assets and liabilities. Statement No. 159 was effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year beginning 
after November 15, 2007. Adoption of Statement No. 159 has had no material impact on results of operations and financial condition. Since the 
adoption date, Susquehanna has made no elections to use fair value as an alternative measurement for selected financial assets and liabilities not 
previously carried at fair value. 

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements." Statement 157 defines 
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value 
measurements. While Statement 157 does not require any new fair value measurements, the application of this Statement will change current 
practice for some entities. Statement 157 was effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and 
interim periods within those fiscal years. For the disclosures required by this Statement, see Note 12. Adoption of Statement No. 157 has had no 
material impact on results of operations and financial condition. 

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-1, "Application of FASB Statement 
No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease 
Classification or Measurement under Statement 13." FSP No. FAS 157-1 amends Statement No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements," to exclude 
Statement No. 13, "Accounting for Leases," and other pronouncements that address fair value measurements for purposes of lease classification 
or measurement under Statement No. 13. However, this scope exception does not apply to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business 
combination that are required to be measured at fair value under Statement No. 141, "Business Combinations," or Statement No. 141(R), "Business 
Combinations," regardless of whether those 
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Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 
(Amounts in thousands, except as noted and per share data) 

assets and liabilities are related to leases. This FSP was effective upon the initial adoption of Statement No. 157. Adoption of FSP No. FAS 157-1 
has had no material impact on results of operations and financial condition. 

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2, "Effective Date of FASB Statement 
No. 157." FSP No. FAS 157-2 delays the effective date of FASB Statement No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements," for nonfinancial assets and 
nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least 
annually) to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of this FSP. 
This FSP was effective upon issuance. Adoption of FSP No. FAS 157-2 has had no material impact on results of operations and financial condition.  

In December 2007, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 110. SAB 110 allows companies to continue 
using the simplified method of estimating the expected-term assumption for "plain vanilla" stock options in certain circumstances. Susquehanna 
uses historical employee exercise patterns to provide a reasonable basis for estimating its expected- term assumption and, therefore, this SAB has 
no impact on its results of operations and financial condition. 

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board reached a consensus on Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 06-4, "Accounting 
for Deferred Compensation and Postretirement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements." Issue 06-4 requires an 
employer to recognize a liability for future benefits in accordance with FAS No. 106, if, in substance, a postretirement benefit plan exists. The 
consensus in this Issue was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. Entities are to recognize the effects of applying the 
consensus in this Issue through either (a) a change in accounting principle through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the 
beginning of the year of adoption or (b) a change in accounting principle through retrospective application to all prior periods. Susquehanna is a 
party to split-dollar life insurance arrangements and has elected to recognize the effects of applying this consensus through a cumulative-effect 
adjustment to retained earnings of $2,488. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements. 

In September 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Staff Position FSP No. 133-1 and FIN 45-4, "Disclosures about 
Credit Derivatives and Certain Guarantees: An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 and FASB Interpretation No. 45; and Clarification of the 
Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 161." The FSP is intended to improve disclosures about credit derivatives by requiring more information 
about the potential adverse effects of changes in credit risk on the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the sellers of credit 
derivatives. It amends FAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," to require disclosures by sellers of credit 
derivatives, including credit derivatives embedded in hybrid instruments. The FSP also amends FAS Interpretation No. 45, "Guarantor’s 
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others," to require an additional 
disclosure about the current status of the payment/performance risk of a guarantee. The provisions of the FSP that amend FAS No. 133 and FIN 45 
are effective for reporting periods (annual or interim) ending after November 15, 2008. Finally, the FSP clarifies that the disclosures required by FAS 
No. 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," should be provided for any reporting period (annual or interim) 
beginning after November 15, 2008. This clarification was effective upon issuance of the FSP. Susquehanna is evaluating the impact of FSP No. 
133-1 and FIN 45-4.  

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Staff Position FSP No. EITF 03-6-1, "Determining Whether 
Instruments Granted in Share-based Payment Transactions are Participating Securities." FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 states that unvested share-based 
payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and 
shall be included in the computation of EPS pursuant to the two-class method. FSP No. EITF 03-6-1 is effective for financial statements issued for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. All prior-period EPS data presented shall be adjusted retrospectively (including interim financial 
statements, summaries of earnings, and selected financial data) to conform with the provisions of this FSP. Early application is not permitted. 
Susquehanna is evaluating the impact of FSP No. EITF 03-6-1.  

In May 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 162, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles." Statement No. 162 improves financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, or hierarchy, for 
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selecting accounting principles to be used in preparing financial statements that are presented in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles for nongovernmental entities. Statement No. 162 is effective sixty days following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board auditing amendments to AU Section 411, "The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles." Susquehanna is evaluating the impact of Statement No. 162. 

In April 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Staff Position FSP No. FAS 142-3, "Determination of the Useful Life of 
Intangible Assets." FSP No. FAS 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to 
determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under FAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." FSP No. FAS 142-3 is 
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. 
Susquehanna is evaluating the impact of FSP No. FAS 142-3.  

In March 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities." Statement No. 161 requires disclosure of the fair values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a tabular 
format. It also requires disclosure of derivative features that are credit risk-related and cross-referencing within footnotes to enable financial 
statement users to locate important information about derivative instruments. Statement No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for 
fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. Susquehanna is evaluating the impact of 
Statement No. 161. 

In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 140-3, "Accounting for Transfers of 
Financial Assets and Repurchase Financing Transactions." FSP No. FAS 140-3 provides guidance on a repurchase financing, which is a 
repurchase agreement that relates to a previously transferred financial asset between the same counter- parties, that is entered into 
contemporaneously with, or in contemplation of, the initial transfer. FSP No. FAS 140-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years Earlier application is not permitted. Susquehanna is evaluating the 
impact of FSP No. FAS 140-3.  

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 141(R), "Business Combinations." Statement No. 141(R) 
requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all (and only) the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction; 
establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer to 
disclose to investors and other users all of the information they need to evaluate and understand the nature and financial effect of the business 
combination. Statement No. 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Susquehanna is evaluating the impact of 
Statement No. 141(R). 

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial 
Statements." Statement No. 160 requires that a reporting entity provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the 
interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. Statement No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2008. Susquehanna is evaluating the impact of Statement No. 160. 

NOTE 2. Acquisitions 

Stratton Holding Company 

On April 30, 2008, Susquehanna completed the acquisition of Stratton Holding Company, an investment management company based in 
Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania with approximately $3,000,000 in assets under management. Stratton became a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Susquehanna Bancshares and part of the family of Susquehanna wealth management companies. The addition of Stratton brings increased 
diversification in Susquehanna’s investment expertise, including experience in mutual fund management. The acquisition was accounted for under 
the purchase method, and all transactions since the acquisition date are included in Susquehanna’s consolidated financial statements.  

The acquisition of Stratton was considered immaterial for purposes of the disclosures required by FAS No. 141, "Business Combinations."  
 

10 



Table of Contents

Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 
(Amounts in thousands, except as noted and per share data) 

Community Banks, Inc. 

On November 16, 2007, Susquehanna completed the acquisition of Community Banks, Inc. in a stock and cash transaction valued at $873,205. 
Under the terms of the merger agreement, shareholders of Community were entitled to elect to receive for each share of Community common stock 
that they owned, either $34.00 in cash or 1.48 shares of Susquehanna common stock. The acquisition expanded Susquehanna’s territory into the 
Harrisburg market and deepened its foundation in central Pennsylvania. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method, and all 
transactions since the acquisition date are included in Susquehanna’s consolidated financial statements.  

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. However, 
since the acquisition occurred in the fourth quarter of 2007, net adjustments increasing goodwill totaling $6,291 were made in the first nine months 
of 2008, as additional information became available. 
 

Presented below is certain unaudited pro forma information for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2007, as if Community 
had been acquired on January 1, 2007. These results combine the historical results of Community, including the termination of certain employee 
benefit programs and costs incurred in connection with the merger, with Susquehanna's consolidated statements of income and, while certain 
adjustments were made for the estimated impact of purchase accounting adjustments, they are not necessarily indicative of what would have 
occurred had the acquisition taken place on the indicated date. 
 

Widmann, Siff & Co., Inc. 

On August 1, 2007, Susquehanna acquired Widmann, Siff & Co. Inc., an investment advisory firm in Radnor, Pennsylvania. Widmann, Siff 
had more than $300,000 in assets under management, including accounts serving individuals, pension and profit-sharing plans, corporations, and 
family trusts. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method, and all transactions since the acquisition date are included in 
Susquehanna's consolidated financial statements. 

The acquisition of Widmann, Siff was considered immaterial for purposes of the disclosures required by FAS No. 141, "Business 
Combinations." 
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     Unaudited

Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 232,628
Securities      664,334
Loans and leases, net of allowance of $19,119      2,574,830
Premises and other equipment      63,749
Goodwill and other intangibles      652,615
Deferred taxes      20,816
Other assets      99,800

Total assets acquired    $ 4,308,772
Liabilities   

Deposits    $ 2,830,408
Borrowings      588,376
Other liabilities      16,783

Total liabilities assumed      3,435,567
Net assets acquired    $ 873,205

     
For the Three Months Ended

September 30,   
For the Nine Months Ended

September 30, 

     
2008

    Actual       
2007 Pro

    Forma       
2008

    Actual       
2007 Pro

    Forma    

Net income    $ 6,360   $ 32,060   $ 63,582   $ 83,466
Basic EPS    $ 0.07   $ 0.37   $ 0.74   $ 0.97
Diluted EPS    $ 0.07   $ 0.37   $ 0.74   $ 0.97
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NOTE 3. Investment Securities 

Amortized costs and fair values of securities were as follows: 
 

The following table presents Susquehanna’s investments’ gross unrealized losses and the corresponding fair values by investment category 
and length of time that the securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007.  
 

In September 2008, Susquehanna recorded a pre-tax impairment charge of $17,550 related to two synthetic collateralized debt obligations held 
in its investment portfolio. Each security has a par value of $10,000 and one hundred underlying reference companies. Through August 31, 2008, 
there were no credit events (i.e. bankruptcies, conservatorships, or receiverships) related to any of the reference companies. Given the significant 
developments that have affected the market since August 31, 2008, a number of credit events have reduced the fair value on one security to 12.5% 
of par as of September 30, 2008, and the fair value of the other security to 12.0% of par as of September 30, 2008. Susquehanna believes that it is 
probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of these securities, and Susquehanna anticipates that 
both securities will receive a below-investment-grade rating by the rating agencies. These are the only two securities of this type that 
Susquehanna currently holds in its $2,039,590 investment portfolio. 

At September 30, 2008, gross unrealized losses in Susquehanna’s available-for-sale investment portfolio totaled $66,007. Included in this 
total are gross unrealized losses of $33,666 related to mortgage-backed securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less 
than twelve months and gross unrealized losses of $10,972 related to other debt securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position 
for more than twelve months. 

     September 30, 2008    December 31, 2007
     Amortized Cost   Fair Value    Amortized Cost   Fair Value

Available-for-sale:            

U.S. Government agencies    $ 508,414   $ 517,054   $ 523,258   $ 533,019
State & municipal      303,881     291,854     266,982     268,633
Mortgage-backed      1,048,551     1,023,110     1,071,001     1,078,401
Other debt securities      64,889     47,652     78,333     68,227
Equities      152,078     150,725     111,289     110,880

     2,077,813     2,030,395     2,050,863     2,059,160
Held-to-maturity:            

State & municipal      4,550     4,550     4,792     4,792
Other      4,645     4,645     0     0

     9,195     9,195     4,792     4,792
Total investment securities    $ 2,087,008   $2,039,590   $ 2,055,655   $2,063,952

     Less than 12 Months    12 Months or More    Total

September 30, 2008    Fair Value  
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair 

Value   
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair 

Value   
Unrealized

Losses

U.S. Government agencies    $ 47,462   $ 105   $ 0   $ 0   $ 47,462   $ 105
States and political subdivisions      219,255     13,036     50     1     219,305     13,037
Mortgage-backed securities      446,172     33,666     2,889     60     449,061     33,726
Other debt securities      35,993     6,448     16,911     10,972     52,904     17,420
Equity securities      17,861     944     2,743     775     20,604     1,719

   $766,743   $ 54,199   $ 22,593   $ 11,808   $789,336   $ 66,007

     Less than 12 Months    12 Months or More    Total

December 31, 2007    Fair Value  
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair 

Value   
Unrealized

Losses   
Fair 

Value   
Unrealized

Losses

U.S. Government agencies    $ 550   $ 1   $ 31,136   $ 45   $ 31,686   $ 46
States and political subdivisions      51,144     397     18,440     202     69,584     599
Mortgage-backed securities      1,121     1,643     184,182     2,107     185,303     3,750
Other debt securities      47,961     10,217     17,438     47     65,399     10,264
Equity securities      2,589     502     16,710     369     19,299     871

   $103,365   $ 12,760   $267,906   $ 2,770   $371,271   $ 15,530



Mortgage-backed securities include issues of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, the Federal National Mortgage Association, 
and other non-agency issuers that currently are all rated Triple A. None of Susquehanna’s mortgage-backed securities include subprime or Alt-A 
components, and management believes that the unrealized losses in this category were caused principally by decreased liquidity and larger risk 
premiums in the marketplace. 

Other debt securities are comprised of corporate synthetic collateralized debt obligations (discussed above) and pooled trust preferred 
securities. The unrealized losses in this category were related to the pooled trust preferred securities, since the corporate synthetic collateralized 
debt obligations have been written down to fair value. Management believes that the unrealized losses on the pooled trust preferred securities 
were principally a result of decreased liquidity and larger risk premiums in the marketplace, and not deterioration in the creditworthiness of the 
underlying issuers. 
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While it is possible that, under certain conditions, defaults on these securities (excluding the two synthetic collateralized debt obligations 
previously discussed) could result in a loss of principal, Susquehanna presently does not believe that those conditions are probable. Therefore, 
based on Susquehanna’s ability and intent to hold its available-for-sale securities for a sufficient time to recover all amortized costs and the fact 
that Susquehanna has not identified any issues related to the ultimate repayment of principal as a result of credit concerns, management has 
concluded that the reduction in the fair value of these securities, as well as any other individual security, is temporary at this time.  

NOTE 4. Loans and Leases 

Loans and leases, net of unearned income, were as follows: 
 

In September, 2008, Susquehanna announced that, due to adverse market conditions, its previously disclosed plan to sell vehicle leases 
would not proceed. As a result, the vehicle leases held for sale at December 31, 2007 and those subsequently originated are now classified as held 
for investment. 

Net investment in direct financing leases was as follows: 
 

    
September 30,

2008   
December 31,

2007

Commercial, financial, and agricultural    $1,987,149   $ 1,781,981
Real estate - construction      1,305,935     1,292,953
Real estate secured - residential      2,248,002     2,151,923
Real estate secured - commercial      2,833,555     2,661,841
Consumer      409,583     411,159
Leases      669,870     451,733

Total loans and leases    $9,454,094   $ 8,751,590

Leases held for sale (included in "Leases," above)    $ 0   $ 238,351
Home equity line of credit loans held for sale (included in "Real estate secured—residential," above)      182,343     97,320

    
September 30,

2008    
December 31,

2007  

Minimum lease payments receivable    $ 449,170    $ 337,875 
Estimated residual value of leases      302,316      176,400 
Unearned income under lease contracts      (81,616)     (62,542)

Total leases    $ 669,870    $ 451,733 

An analysis of impaired loans, as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, is as follows:  

Impaired loans without a related reserve    $ 25,589    $ 27,716 
Impaired loans with a reserve      53,633      13,033 

Total impaired loans    $ 79,222    $ 40,749 

Reserve for impaired loans    $ 13,450    $ 4,146 

An analysis of impaired loans, for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, is as follows:  

     Three Months Ended September 30,  
     2008     2007  

Average balance of impaired loans    $ 72,431    $ 15,435 
Interest income on impaired loans (cash-basis)      60      39 

     Nine Months Ended September 30,  
     2008     2007  

Average balance of impaired loans    $ 57,866    $ 17,722 
Interest income on impaired loans (cash-basis)      191      41 

NOTE 5. Borrowings     

Short-term borrowings were as follows:     

September 30, December 31,
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     2008     2007  

Securities sold under repurchase agreements    $ 399,489    $ 387,158 
Federal funds purchased      335,200      178,000 
Treasury tax and loan notes      3,827      3,254 

Total short-term borrowings    $ 738,516    $ 568,412 
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NOTE 6. Earnings per Share 

The following tables set forth the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the three-month and nine-month periods ended 
September 30, 2008 and 2007. 
 

For the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, average options to purchase 2,308 and 1,657 shares, respectively, were 
outstanding but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the options’ common stock equivalents under FAS No. 123(R) were 
antidilutive. 
 

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, average options to purchase 2,167 and 1,657 shares, respectively, were outstanding 
but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the options’ common stock equivalents under FAS No. 123(R) were antidilutive.  

NOTE 7. Share-Based Compensation  
On February 27, 2008, Susquehanna’s Compensation Committee granted to directors and certain employees nonqualified stock options to 

purchase an aggregate of 700 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $21.82. In addition, the Committee awarded to certain employees an 
aggregate of 26 restricted shares with a grant-date fair value of $21.82.  

The fair value of $2.78 for each of the 2008 options and $4.08 for each of the 2007 options was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes-Merton model, with the assumptions noted in the following table:  
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     For the Three Months Ended September 30,
     2008    2007

     Income    Shares   
Per Share
Amount    Income    Shares   

Per Share
Amount

Basic Earnings per Share:                  

Income available to common shareholders    $6,360   86,010   $ 0.07   $19,893   52,174   $ 0.38
Effect of Diluted Securities:                  

Stock options and restricted shares outstanding       23         47  

Diluted Earnings per Share:                  

Income available to common shareholders and assuming conversion    $6,360   86,033   $ 0.07   $19,893   52,221   $ 0.38

     For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
     2008    2007

     Income    Shares   
Per Share
Amount    Income    Shares   

Per Share
Amount

Basic Earnings per Share:                  

Income available to common shareholders    $63,582   85,956   $ 0.74   $50,437   52,132   $ 0.97
Effect of Diluted Securities:                  

Stock options and restricted shares outstanding       36         76  

Diluted Earnings per Share:                  

Income available to common shareholders and assuming conversion    $63,582   85,992   $ 0.74   $50,437   52,208   $ 0.97

     2008     2007  

Volatility    19.70%  20.59%
Expected dividend yield    4.50%  4.00%
Expected term (in years)    7.0    6.5 
Risk-free rate    3.33%  4.44%
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NOTE 8. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits 

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost 
 

Employer Contributions 

Susquehanna previously disclosed in its financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007, that it expected to contribute $124 to its 
pension plans and $371 to its other postretirement benefit plan in 2008. As of September 30, 2008, $93 of contributions have been made to its 
pension plans, and $486 of contributions have been made to its other postretirement benefit plan. Susquehanna anticipates contributing an 
additional $31 to fund its pension plan in 2008, for a total of $124, and $168 to its other postretirement benefit plan, for a total of $654.  

NOTE 9. Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities 

Beginning in February 2007, Susquehanna entered into a series of amortizing interest rate swaps that reached an aggregate notional amount 
of $248,651 at September 5, 2008. For purposes of our consolidated financial statements, the entire notional amount of the swaps was designated 
as a cash flow hedge of expected future cash flows associated with a forecasted sale of vehicle leases. In September 2008, Susquehanna 
announced that, due to adverse market conditions, this forecasted sale would not occur, and the interest rate swap agreements were terminated. In 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, Susquehanna reclassified the fair value of these swaps from accumulated other 
comprehensive loss to earnings and recognized a reduction in pre-tax income of $6,539.  

The following table summarizes our derivative financial instruments: 
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     Three Months Ended September 30,

     Pension Benefits    
Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan   

Other
Postretirement

Benefits
     2008     2007     2008    2007    2008    2007

Service cost    $ 1,578    $ 927    $ 27   $ 26   $111   $ 138
Interest cost      1,335      1,137      62     56     121     148
Expected return on plan assets      (1,844)    (1,762)    0     0     0     0
Amortization of prior service cost      12      9      31     31     28     28
Amortization of transition obligation (asset)      0      (2)    0     0     28     28
Amortization of net actuarial loss      173      13      20     15     0     33

Net periodic benefit cost    $ 1,254    $ 322    $ 140   $ 128   $288   $ 375

     Nine Months Ended September 30,

     Pension Benefits    
Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan   

Other
Postretirement

Benefits
     2008     2007     2008    2007    2008    2007

Service cost    $ 4,326    $ 3,091    $ 84   $ 78   $333   $ 414
Interest cost      3,995      3,433      180     164     363     444
Expected return on plan assets      (5,848)    (5,280)    0     0     0     0
Amortization of prior service cost      30      23      93     93     84     84
Amortization of transition obligation (asset)      0      (2)    0     0     84     84
Amortization of net actuarial loss      173      81      44     37     0     99

Net periodic benefit cost    $ 2,676    $ 1,346    $ 401   $ 372   $864   $1,125

     September 30, 2008

    
Notional
Amount   

Fair
Value     Variable Rate    Fixed Rate

Cash Flow Hedges:           

   $ 25,000   ($ 363)  Three-month LIBOR   4.083%
Instruments Not           

Designated as Hedges:           

     235,036     (2,794)  One-month LIBOR   4.86% to 7.42%
     235,036     3,408    One-month LIBOR   4.86% to 7.42%
     470,072     614      

Total Derivatives    $495,072   $ 251      
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The effective portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges is initially reported in accumulated other comprehensive income and 
subsequently reclassified to earnings when the hedged transactions affect earnings or when the hedged forecasted transaction is considered no 
longer probable of occurring. Ineffectiveness resulting from the hedge, if any, is recorded in other noninterest income.  

Changes in the fair value of instruments not designated as hedges are recorded in other noninterest income. 

NOTE 10. Goodwill 

The following is the activity in the goodwill account during the periods presented: 
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     December 31, 2007

    
Notional
Amount   

Fair
Value     Variable Rate    Fixed Rate

Cash Flow Hedges:           

   $185,244   ($3,228)  One-month LIBOR   3.661% to 5.206%
     25,000     81    Three-month LIBOR   3.935%
     25,000     (163)  Three-month LIBOR   4.083%

Total Derivatives    $235,244   ($3,310)    

Goodwill at January 1, 2007    $ 335,005
Goodwill acquired through the Community acquisition      606,071
Goodwill acquired through the Widmann Siff acquisition      736
Additional goodwill related to contingent earn-out agreement associated with the Addis acquisition      2,000
Additional goodwill related to contingent earn-out agreement associated with the Brandywine acquisition      1,172
Other      97

Goodwill at December 31, 2007      945,081
Adjustments to goodwill related to the Community acquisition      6,291
Goodwill acquired through the Stratton acquisition      62,910

Goodwill at September 30, 2008    $1,014,282
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Note 11. Securitization Activity 

Automobile Leases 

2006 Transaction 

In September 2008, Susquehanna, as servicer, issued a clean-up call for this securitization and acquired $31,773 in lease receivables.  

2005 Transaction 

In January 2008, Susquehanna, as servicer, issued a clean-up call for this securitization and acquired $32,140 in lease receivables.  

2007 Transaction 

In February 2007, Susquehanna securitized $300,414 of closed-end motor vehicle leases and recorded a pre-tax gain of $2,709 (which includes 
a loss recognized on the associated cash-flow hedge) in noninterest income. Retained interests in the securitization totaled $51,930 and included 
$7,774 in subordinated notes, $40,147 in equity certificates of the securitization trust, and a $4,009 interest-only strip. The initial carrying values of 
these retained interests were determined by allocating the carrying value among the assets sold and retained based on their relative fair values at 
the date of sale. The initial carrying value of the interest-only strip was estimated at the date of sale by discounting projected future cash flows. 
Susquehanna has retained the right to service the leases; however, no servicing asset or liability was recognized because expected servicing costs 
are approximately equal to expected servicing fee income, which approximates market value. Transaction costs associated with this securitization 
were included as a component of gain on sale. The subordinated notes retained in the transaction, which do not bear interest, have been rated by 
independent rating agencies. Their final maturity date is January 14, 2013. 

2002 Revolving Transaction 

In July 2007, Susquehanna, as servicer, issued a clean-up call for this securitization and acquired $33,397 in lease receivables.  

Key economic assumptions used in measuring certain retained interests at the date of securitization were as follows: 
 

The following table presents quantitative information about delinquencies, net credit losses, and components of loan and lease sales 
serviced by Susquehanna, including securitization transactions. 
 

Certain cash flows received from or conveyed to the structured entities associated with the securitizations are as follows:  
 

There were no proceeds from securitizations nor amounts derecognized for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 
relating to home equity loans. 

Automobile Leases   
Gain

Recognized  

Weighted- 
average Life
(in months)   

Prepayment
Speed   

Expected
Credit
Losses    

Annual
Discount

Rate    

Annual
Coupon Rate
to Investors

2007 transaction    $ 2,709   19   2.00%-4.00%   0.05%  5.18%  5.25%-5.61%

                        
For the Nine Months

Ended Sept. 30,  

     Principal Balance   
Loans and Leases Past Due

30 Days or More    Net Credit Losses (Recoveries)  
     Sept. 30, 2008   December 31, 2007   Sept. 30, 2008   December 31, 2007   2008    2007  

Loans and leases held in portfolio    $ 9,454,094   $ 8,751,590   $ 188,973   $ 187,703   $ 24,300   $ 10,303 
Leases securitized      150,065     463,517     198     769     154     314 
Home equity loans securitized      294,716     334,417     2,734     2,979     202     52 
Leases serviced for others      37,070     61,551     466     1,300     1     (122)

Total loans and leases serviced    $ 9,935,945   $ 9,611,075   $ 192,371   $ 192,751   $ 24,657   $ 10,547 

     Three Months Ended September 30,    Nine Months Ended Sept. 30,
Automobile Leases    2008    2007    2008    2007

Proceeds from securitizations    $ 0   $ 0   $ 0   $ 252,493
Amounts derecognized      0     0     0     300,414
Servicing fees received      611     1,593     2,490     5,667
Other cash flows received from retained interests      6,544     11,190     21,461     19,083

     Three Months Ended September 30,    Nine Months Ended Sept. 30,
Home Equity Loans    2008    2007    2008    2007

Additional draws conveyed to the trusts    $ 14,846   $ 13,850   $ 43,012   $ 46,342
Servicing fees received      310     387     964     1,273
Other cash flows received from retained interests      1,022     1,779     5,755     6,019
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Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 
(Amounts in thousands, except as noted and per share data) 

The following table sets forth a summary of the fair values of the interest-only strips, key economic assumptions used to arrive at the fair 
values, and the sensitivity of the September 30, 2008 fair values to immediate 10% and 20% adverse changes in those assumptions. The 
sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. Changes in fair value based on a 10% variation in assumptions generally cannot be 
extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, the effect of a variation in a 
particular assumption on the fair value of the retained interest is calculated without changing any other assumption; in reality, changes in one 
factor may result in changes in another (for example, increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit 
losses), which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities. 

Susquehanna’s analysis of the information presented below indicates that any adverse change of 20% in the key economic assumptions 
would not have a significant effect on the fair value of Susquehanna’s interest-only strips.  

As of September 30, 2008 
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Automobile Leases   
Fair

Value   

Weighted- 
average

Life
(in months)  

Monthly
Prepayment

Speed    

Expected
Cumulative

Credit
Losses    

Annual
Discount
Rate (1)  

2007 transaction - Interest-Only Strip    $1,134   9     4.00%    0.05%    10.28%
Decline in fair value of 10% adverse change          $ 2    $ 5    $ 7 
Decline in fair value of 20% adverse change            5      11      14 

Home Equity Loans   
Fair

Value   

Weighted- 
average

Life
(in months)  

Constant
Prepayment

Rate    

Expected
Cumulative

Credit
Losses    

Annual
Discount
Rate (1)  

2006 transaction - Interest-Only Strips             

Fixed-rate portion    $8,047   42     15.00      0.04%    8.59%
Decline in fair value of 10% adverse change          $ 291    $ 13    $ 187 
Decline in fair value of 20% adverse change            568      30      363 

Variable-rate portion    $2,856   23     40.00      0.06%    8.67%
Decline in fair value of 10% adverse change          $ 165    $ 6    $ 52 
Decline in fair value of 20% adverse change            309      13      101 

2005 transaction - Interest-Only Strips    $3,519   27     35.00      0.06%    8.55%
Decline in fair value of 10% adverse change          $ 0    $ 10    $ 105 
Decline in fair value of 20% adverse change            0      19      203 

(1) The annual discount rate is based on fair-value estimates of similar instruments. 
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Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
(Amounts in thousands, except as noted and per share data) 

Note 12. Fair Value Disclosures 

Effective January 1, 2008, Susquehanna adopted FAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" and FAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities." At September 30, 2008, Susquehanna had made no elections to use fair value as an alternative 
measurement for selected financial assets and financial liabilities not previously carried at fair value. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement dates. Observable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability 
developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs reflect the reporting entity’s own 
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information 
available in the circumstances. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity has 
the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The level in the hierarchy within which 
the fair value measurement in its entirety falls shall be determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
in its entirety. 

The following is a description of Susquehanna’s valuation methodologies for assets and liabilities carried at fair value. These methods may 
produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while Susquehanna 
believes that its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or 
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value at reporting date.  

Securities 

Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities are classified in Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Securities in Level 1 are 
exchange-traded equities. If quoted market prices are not available for the specific security, then fair values are provided by independent third-
party valuations services. These valuations services estimate fair values using pricing models and other accepted valuation methodologies, such 
as quotes for similar securities and observable yield curves and spreads. As part of Susquehanna’s overall valuation process, management 
evaluates these third-party methodologies to ensure that they are representative of exit prices in Susquehanna’s principal markets. Securities in 
Level 2 include U.S. Government agencies, mortgage-backed securities, state and municipal securities, and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock. 
Securities in Level 3 include thinly traded bank stocks, collateralized debt obligations, trust preferred securities, indexed-amortizing notes, and 
private-issue mortgage-backed securities.  

Derivatives 

Currently, Susquehanna uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk and to assist its borrowers in managing their interest rate 
risk. The fair values of interest rate swaps are determined using the market standard methodology of netting the discounted future fixed cash 
receipts (or payments) and the discounted expected variable cash payments (or receipts). The variable cash payments (or receipts) are based on an 
expectation of future interest rates derived from observable market interest rate curves. To comply with the provisions of FAS No. 157, 
Susquehanna incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective 
counterparty's nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the effect of 
nonperformance risk, Susquehanna has considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit enhancements, such as collateral postings, 
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees. 

Although Susquehanna has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value 
hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives may utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to 
evaluate the likelihood of default by itself and its counterparties. However, as of September 30, 2008, Susquehanna has assessed the significance 
of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and has determined that the credit valuation 
adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of its derivatives. As a result, Susquehanna has determined that its derivative valuations in 
their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Certain Retained Interests in Securitizations 

For our interest-only strips, there is a lack of similar observable transactions for similar assets in the marketplace. Therefore, Susquehanna 
uses the present-value approach to determine the initial and ongoing fair values of the cash flows associated with securitizations. Assumptions 
used, which incorporate certain market information obtained from third parties, include an estimation of an appropriate discount rate, net  
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Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 
(Amounts in thousands, except as noted and per share data) 

credit losses, and prepayment rates. Changes in the assumptions used may have a significant impact on Susquehanna’s valuation of retained 
interests, and accordingly, such interests are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. For further discussion of the most significant 
assumptions used to value interest-only strips, as well as the applicable stress tests for those assumptions, see Note 11 of this Form 10-Q.  

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

The following table presents the financial instruments carried at fair value at September 30, 2008, on the consolidated balance sheet and by 
FAS No. 157 valuation hierarchy. 
 

 

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis Using Significant Unobservable Inputs 

The following table presents a rollforward of the balance sheet amounts for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2008, for 
financial instruments classified by Susquehanna within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. 
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September 30, 2008

   Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Description      

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Identical Instruments
(Level 1)   

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)

Assets            

Available-for-sale securities    $ 2,030,395   $ 4,439   $ 1,964,306   $ 61,650
Derivatives (1)      4,158     0     4,158     0
Interest-only strips (1)      15,556     0     0     15,556

Total    $ 2,050,109   $ 4,439   $ 1,968,464   $ 77,206

(1)    Included in Other assets            

    

September 30, 2008

   Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Description      

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Identical Instruments
(Level 1)   

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)

Liabilities            

Derivatives (2)    $ 3,907   $ 0   $ 3,907   $ 0
Total    $ 3,907   $ 0   $ 3,907   $ 0

(2)    Included in Other liabilities            

    
Fair Value Measurements

Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)  

    
Available-for- 
sale Securities   

Interest- 
only Strips     Total  

Balance at July 1, 2008    $ 76,915    $ 19,195    $ 96,110 
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized)       

Included in earnings      (17,550)(1)     0      (17,550)
Reclassified from other comprehensive income (Presented here gross of taxes)      9,200      0      9,200 
Included in other comprehensive income (Presented here gross of taxes)      (2,164)     (1,734)     (3,898)

Purchases, issuances, and settlements      (7,560)     (1,905)     (9,465)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3      2,809      0      2,809 

Balance at September 30, 2008    $ 61,650    $ 15,556    $ 77,206 

(1) Included in net realized loss on securities 
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 

Impaired loans 

Certain loans are evaluated for impairment under FAS No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan—an amendment of FASB 
Statements No. 5 and 15." To estimate the impairment of a loan, Susquehanna uses the practical expedient method which is based upon the fair 
value of the underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans. Currently, all of Susquehanna’s impaired loans are secured by real estate. The 
value of the real estate collateral is determined through appraisals performed by independent licensed appraisers. As part of Susquehanna’s 
overall valuation process, management evaluates these third-party appraisals to ensure that they are representative of the exit prices in 
Susquehanna’s principal markets. When the value of the real estate, less estimated costs to sell, is less than the principal balance of the loan, a 
specific reserve is established. Susquehanna considers the appraisals used in its impairment analysis to be Level 3 inputs. Impaired loans are 
reviewed at least quarterly for additional impairment, and reserves are adjusted accordingly. 

The following table presents the financial instruments carried at fair value at September 30, 2008, on the consolidated balance sheet and by 
FAS No. 157 valuation hierarchy. 
 

Specific reserves identified under FAS No. 114 during the first nine months of 2008 totaled $9,304. These specific reserves were taken into 
consideration when the required level of the allowance for loan and lease losses was determined at September 30, 2008. 
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Fair Value Measurements

Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)  

    
Available-for- 
sale Securities   

Interest- 
only Strips     Total  

Balance at January 1, 2008    $ 81,285    $ 21,138    $ 102,423 
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized)       

Included in earnings      (17,548)(1)     0      (17,548)
Reclassified from other comprehensive income (Presented here gross of taxes)      5,175      0      5,175 
Included in other comprehensive income (Presented here gross of taxes)      (6,898)     359      (6,539)

Purchases, issuances, and settlements      (3,173)     (5,941)     (9,114)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3      2,809      0      2,809 

Balance at September 30, 2008    $ 61,650    $ 15,556    $ 77,206 

(1) Included in net realized loss on securities 

    

September 30, 2008

   Fair Value Measurements Using

Description      

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Identical Instruments
(Level 1)   

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)

Impaired loans    $ 40,183   $ 0   $ 0   $ 40,183
   $ 40,183   $ 0   $ 0   $ 40,183
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Note 13. Subsequent Events 

Bank Consolidation 

On October 10, 2008, Susquehanna consolidated its three banks into a single subsidiary known as Susquehanna Bank. This initiative, 
planned and implemented over a six-month period, was designed to improve efficiency, customer service, and product delivery. Expenses related to 
the consolidation resulted in a $2,500 pre-tax charge in the third quarter, but Susquehanna expects that the consolidation will generate annual 
savings of approximately $20,000 beginning in 2009. 
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Management’s discussion and analysis of the significant changes in the consolidated results of operations, financial condition, and cash 
flows of Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiaries is set forth below for the periods indicated. Unless the context requires otherwise, the 
terms "Susquehanna," "we," "us," and "our" refer to Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiaries. 

Certain statements in this document may be considered to be "forward-looking statements" as that term is defined in the U.S. Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, such as statements that include the words "expect," "estimate," "project," "anticipate," "should," 
"intend," "probability," "risk," "target," "objective," and similar expressions or variations on such expressions. In particular, this document 
includes forward-looking statements relating, but not limited to, Susquehanna’s potential exposures to various types of market risks, such as 
interest rate risk and credit risk; whether Susquehanna’s allowance for loan and lease losses is adequate to meet probable loan and lease losses; 
the impact of a breach by Auto Lenders Liquidation Center, Inc. ("Auto Lenders") on residual loss exposure; our ability to collect all amounts due 
under our outstanding synthetic collateralized debt obligations; and our ability to achieve our 2008 financial goals. Such statements are subject to 
certain risks and uncertainties. For example, certain of the market risk disclosures are dependent on choices about essential model characteristics 
and assumptions and are subject to various limitations. By their nature, certain of the market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be 
materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual income gains and losses could materially differ from those that have 
been estimated. Other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those estimated by the forward-looking statements contained 
in this document include, but are not limited to: 
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. 

 
•   adverse changes in the economy generally and in particular, adverse changes relating to the risks set forth under Part II, Item 1A of 

this report; 

  •   adverse changes in our loan and lease portfolios and the resulting credit-risk-related losses and expenses; 

  •   adverse changes in the automobile industry; 

 
•   interest rate fluctuations which could increase our cost of funds or decrease our yield on earning assets and therefore reduce our net 

interest income; 

  •   continued levels of our loan and lease quality and origination volume; 

  •   the adequacy of loss reserves; 

  •   the loss of certain key officers, which could adversely impact our business; 

  •   continued relationships with major customers; 

 
•   the ability to continue to grow our business internally and through acquisition and successful integration of bank and non-bank 

entities while controlling our costs; 

  •   adverse national and regional economic and business conditions; 

  •   compliance with laws and regulatory requirements of federal and state agencies; 

 
•   competition from other financial institutions in originating loans, attracting deposits, and providing various financial services that may 

affect our profitability; 

  •   the ability to hedge certain risks economically; 

  •   our ability to effectively implement technology driven products and services; 

  •   changes in consumer confidence, spending and savings habits relative to the bank and non-bank financial services we provide; 
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We encourage readers of this report to understand forward-looking statements to be strategic objectives rather than absolute targets of 
future performance. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made. We do not intend to update publicly any forward-looking 
statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date the forward-looking statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of 
unanticipated events except as required by law. 

The following discussion and analysis, the purpose of which is to provide investors and others with information that we believe to be 
necessary for an understanding of Susquehanna’s financial condition, changes in financial condition, and results of operations, should be read in 
conjunction with the financial statements, notes, and other information contained in this document. 

The following information refers to the parent company and its wholly owned subsidiaries: Boston Service Company, Inc., (t/a Hann 
Financial Service Corporation) ("Hann"), Conestoga Management Company, Susquehanna Bank PA and subsidiaries, Susquehanna Bank DV and 
subsidiaries, Susquehanna Bank and subsidiaries, Valley Forge Asset Management Corp. and subsidiaries ("VFAM"), Stratton Management 
Company, LLC ("Stratton"), and The Addis Group, LLC ("Addis"). 

Availability of Information 

Our web-site address is www.susquehanna.net. We make available free of charge, through the Investor Relations section of our web site, our 
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports as soon as 
reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission. We include our web-
site address in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q as an inactive textual reference only.  

Executive Commentary 

Updated Financial Goals for 2008 

Our updated financial goals for 2008 are as follows: 
 

These updated financial goals include no securitization activity in 2008 and include the impact of several significant items discussed in 
"Results of Operations." 
 

24 

 
•   greater reliance on wholesale funding because our loan growth has outpaced our deposit growth, and we have no current access to 

securitization markets; and 

  •   our success in managing the risks involved in the foregoing. 

    

Previously
Published

Goals    
Updated

Goals  

Net interest margin    3.69%  3.64%
Loan growth (adjusted for securitizations)    10.0%  9.0%
Deposit growth    2.0%  4.0%
Noninterest income growth    45.0%  21.0%
Noninterest expense growth    30.0%  32.0%
Tax rate    28.0%  26.0%
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Acquisitions 

Stratton Holding Company 

On April 30, 2008, we completed the acquisition of Stratton Holding Company, an investment management company based in Plymouth 
Meeting, Pennsylvania with approximately $3.0 billion in assets under management. Stratton became a wholly owned subsidiary of Susquehanna 
and part of the family of Susquehanna wealth management companies. The addition of Stratton brings increased diversification in our investment 
expertise, including experience in mutual fund management. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method, and all transactions 
since the acquisition date are included in our consolidated financial statements. The acquisition of Stratton was considered immaterial for 
purposes of the disclosures required by FAS No. 141, "Business Combinations." 

Community Banks, Inc. 

On November 16, 2007, we completed the acquisition of Community Banks, Inc. in a stock and cash transaction valued at approximately 
$871.0 million. Under the terms of the merger agreement, shareholders of Community were entitled to elect to receive for each share of Community 
common stock that they owned, either $34.00 in cash or 1.48 shares of Susquehanna common stock. The acquisition expanded our territory into the 
Harrisburg market and deepened our foundation in central Pennsylvania. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method, and all 
transactions since the acquisition date are included in our consolidated financial statements. See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements 
for the disclosures required by FAS No. 141, "Business Combinations." 

Widmann, Siff & Co., Inc. 

On August 1, 2007, we acquired Widmann, Siff & Co., Inc., an investment advisory firm in Radnor, Pennsylvania. Widmann, Siff had more 
than $300.0 million in assets under management, including accounts serving individuals, pension and profit-sharing plans, corporations, and family 
trusts. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method, and all transactions since the acquisition date are included in our 
consolidated financial statements. The acquisition of Widmann, Siff was considered immaterial for purposes of the disclosures required by FAS 
No. 141, "Business Combinations." 

Subsequent Events 

Bank Consolidation 

On October 10, 2008, we consolidated our three banks into a single subsidiary known as Susquehanna Bank. This initiative, planned and 
implemented over a six-month period, was designed to improve efficiency, customer service, and product delivery. Expenses related to the 
consolidation resulted in a $2.5 million pre-tax charge in the third quarter, but we expect that the consolidation will generate annual savings of 
approximately $20.0 million beginning in 2009. 
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Results of Operations 

Summary of 2008 Compared to 2007 

The acquisition of Community Banks, Inc. on November 16, 2007 has had a significant impact on our results of operations for the third 
quarter of 2008 and the first nine months of 2008. Consequently, comparisons to the same periods in 2007 may not be particularly meaningful.  

Furthermore, results of operations for the three-month and nine-month periods ending September 30, 2008 include the following pre-tax 
charges: 
 

 

 

 

 

Also, results of operations for the nine-month period ending September 30, 2007 include a pre-tax loss of $11.8 million related to the 
restructuring of our investment portfolio. 

Net income for the third quarter of 2008 was $6.4 million, a decrease of $13.5 million, or 68.0%, from net income of $19.9 million for the third 
quarter of 2007. Net interest income increased 53.3%, to $101.3 million for the third quarter of 2008, from $66.1 million for the third quarter of 2007. 
Noninterest income decreased 40.8%, to $17.9 million for the third quarter of 2008, from $30.3 million for the third quarter of 2007. Noninterest 
expenses increased 45.0%, to $95.8 million for the third quarter of 2008, from $66.1 million for the third quarter of 2007.  

Net income for the first nine months of 2008 was $63.6 million, an increase of $13.1 million, or 26.1%, from net income of $50.4 million for the 
first nine months of 2007. Net interest income increased 55.0%, to $298.5 million for the first nine months of 2008, from $192.6 million for the first 
nine months of 2007. Noninterest income increased 26.0%, to $105.5 million for the first nine months of 2008, from $83.7 million for the first nine 
months of 2007. Noninterest expenses increased 40.3%, to $278.1 million for the first nine months of 2008, from $198.3 million for the first nine 
months of 2007. 

Additional information is as follows: 
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  •   a $6.5 million loss related to an interest rate swap termination; 

  •   a $2.5 million consolidation charge composed of the following: 

Employee termination benefits    $1.60 million
Legal fees      .25 million
Technology costs      .65 million

  •   a $17.5 million securities impairment charge; and 

  •   a $2.1 million VFAM customer-loss contingency. 

    
Three Months Ended

September 30,    
Nine Months Ended

September 30,  
         2008            2007            2008            2007     

Diluted Earnings per Share    $ 0.07    $ 0.38    $ 0.74    $ 0.97 
Return on Average Assets      0.19%     0.93%    0.64%    0.81%
Return on Average Equity      1.49%     8.39%    4.94%    7.16%
Return on Average Tangible Equity (1)      5.21%     13.83%    13.59%    11.81%
Efficiency Ratio      78.38%     67.97%    67.37%    71.14%
Net Interest Margin      3.60%     3.64%    3.66%    3.66%
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Return on average tangible equity is a non-GAAP-based financial measure calculated using non-GAAP amounts. The most directly 
comparable measure is return on average equity, which is calculated using GAAP- based amounts. We calculate return on average tangible equity 
by excluding the balance of intangible assets and their related amortization expense from our calculation of return on average equity. Management 
uses the return on average tangible equity in order to review our core operating results. Management believes that this is a better measure of our 
performance. In addition, this is consistent with the treatment by bank regulatory agencies, which excludes goodwill and other intangible assets 
from the calculation of risk-based capital ratios. A reconciliation of return on average equity to return on average tangible equity is set forth below.  
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(1) Supplemental Reporting of Non-GAAP-based Financial Measures 

    
Three Months Ended

September 30,    
Nine Months Ended

September 30,  
         2008            2007            2008            2007     

Return on average equity (GAAP basis)    1.49%  8.39%  4.94%  7.16%
Effect of excluding average intangible assets and related amortization    3.72%  5.44%  8.65%  4.65%
Return on average tangible equity    5.21%  13.83%  13.59%  11.81%
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Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
TABLE 1 - Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  
(dollars in thousands) 
Interest rates and interest differential—taxable equivalent basis  
 

Additional Information 

Average loan balances include non-accrual loans.  

Tax-exempt income has been adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis using a marginal rate of 35%.  

For presentation in this table, average balances and the corresponding average rates for investment securities are based upon historical cost, 
adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. 
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For the Three-Month Period 
Ended

September 30, 2008   

For the Three-
Month Period Ended
September 30, 2007

     
Average
Balance     Interest   

Rate
(%)   

Average
Balance     Interest   

Rate
(%)

Assets                

Short-term investments    $ 92,693    $ 491   2.11   $ 92,110    $ 1,019   4.39
Investment securities:                

Taxable      1,776,148      22,872   5.12     1,444,726      18,672   5.13
Tax-advantaged      309,751      5,117   6.57     41,487      655   6.26

Total investment securities      2,085,899      27,989   5.34     1,486,213      19,327   5.16
Loans and leases, (net):                

Taxable      9,134,226      146,070   6.36     5,618,807      106,455   7.52
Tax-advantaged      197,137      3,546   7.16     93,359      1,737   7.38

Total loans and leases      9,331,363      149,616   6.38     5,712,166      108,192   7.51
Total interest-earning assets      11,509,955    $178,096   6.16     7,290,489    $128,538   6.99
Allowance for loan and lease losses      (98,963)          (61,900)    

Other non-earning assets      2,095,831            1,237,046      

Total assets    $13,506,823          $8,465,635      

Liabilities                

Deposits:                

Interest-bearing demand    $ 2,558,459    $ 7,441   1.16   $2,097,339    $ 15,119   2.86
Savings      734,832      1,116   0.60     430,305      869   0.80
Time      4,509,237      41,236   3.64     2,565,452      30,128   4.66

Short-term borrowings      722,528      3,179   1.75     464,610      5,033   4.30
FHLB borrowings      1,396,158      13,120   3.74     620,809      7,106   4.54
Long-term debt      422,870      7,709   7.25     222,026      3,372   6.03
Total interest-bearing liabilities      10,344,084    $ 73,801   2.84     6,400,541    $ 61,627   3.82
Demand deposits      1,223,621            880,724      

Other liabilities      240,354            243,810      

Total liabilities      11,808,059            7,525,075      

Equity      1,698,764            940,560      

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity    $13,506,823          $8,465,635      

Net interest income / yield on average earning assets      $104,295   3.60     $ 66,911   3.64
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Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
TABLE 1 - Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity (continued)  
(dollars in thousands) 
Interest rates and interest differential—taxable equivalent basis  
 

Additional Information 

Average loan balances include non-accrual loans.  

Tax-exempt income has been adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis using a marginal rate of 35%.  

For presentation in this table, average balances and the corresponding average rates for investment securities are based upon historical cost, 
adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. 
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For the Nine-Month Period 
Ended

September 30, 2008   

For the Nine-Month Period 
Ended

September 30, 2007

     
Average
Balance     Interest   

Rate
(%)   

Average
Balance     Interest   

Rate
(%)

Assets                

Short-term investments    $ 99,699    $ 1,939   2.60   $ 91,851    $ 3,411   4.97
Investment securities:                

Taxable      1,775,290      70,062   5.27     1,429,643      51,799   4.84
Tax-advantaged      293,539      14,288   6.50     40,323      1,905   6.32

Total investment securities      2,068,829      84,350   5.45     1,469,966      53,704   4.88
Loans and leases, (net):                

Taxable      8,858,477      437,299   6.59     5,471,681      309,576   7.56
Tax-advantaged      193,896      10,683   7.36     89,457      4,998   7.47

Total loans and leases      9,052,373      447,982   6.61     5,561,138      314,574   7.56
Total interest-earning assets      11,220,901    $534,271   6.36     7,122,955    $371,689   6.98
Allowance for loan and lease losses      (94,097)          (62,424)    

Other non-earning assets      2,098,571            1,228,005      

Total assets    $13,225,375          $8,288,536      

Liabilities                

Deposits:                

Interest-bearing demand    $ 2,662,819    $ 27,254   1.37   $2,102,416    $ 47,982   3.05
Savings      729,658      3,954   0.72     453,234      2,922   0.86
Time      4,243,996      124,094   3.91     2,509,837      86,814   4.62

Short-term borrowings      643,341      9,368   1.95     390,149      12,805   4.39
FHLB borrowings      1,344,995      39,104   3.88     532,404      16,236   4.08
Long-term debt      421,297      23,256   7.37     222,114      9,955   5.99
Total interest-bearing liabilities      10,046,106    $227,030   3.02     6,210,154    $176,714   3.80
Demand deposits      1,208,861            897,463      

Other liabilities      252,526            239,090      

Total liabilities      11,507,493            7,346,707      

Equity      1,717,882            941,829      

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity    $13,225,375          $8,288,536      

Net interest income / yield on average earning assets      $307,241   3.66     $194,975   3.66
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Net Interest Income—Taxable Equivalent Basis  
Our major source of operating revenues is net interest income, which increased to $101.3 million for the third quarter of 2008, as compared to 

$66.1 million for the same period in 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, net interest income increased to $298.5 million, as 
compared to $192.6 million for the same period in 2007. 

Net interest income as a percentage of net interest income plus noninterest income was 85.0% for the quarter ended September 30, 2008, and 
68.6% for the quarter ended September 30, 2007. Net interest income as a percentage of net interest income plus noninterest income was 73.9% for 
the nine months ended September 30, 2008, and 69.7% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. 

Net interest income is the income that remains after deducting, from total income generated by earning assets, the interest expense 
attributable to the acquisition of the funds required to support earning assets. Income from earning assets includes income from loans, investment 
securities, and short-term investments. The amount of interest income is dependent upon many factors, including the volume of earning assets, 
the general level of interest rates, the dynamics of the change in interest rates, and the levels of non-performing loans. The cost of funds varies 
with the amount of funds necessary to support earning assets, the rates paid to attract and hold deposits, the rates paid on borrowed funds, and 
the levels of noninterest-bearing demand deposits and equity capital.  

TABLE 1 presents average balances, taxable equivalent interest income and expense, and yields earned or paid on these assets and 
liabilities. For purposes of calculating taxable equivalent interest income, tax-exempt interest has been adjusted using a marginal tax rate of 35% in 
order to equate the yield to that of taxable interest rates. 

The $35.2 million increase in our net interest income for the third quarter of 2008, as compared to the third quarter of 2007, was primarily the 
result of the net contribution from interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities acquired from Community on November 16, 2007.  

The $105.9 million increase in our net interest income for the first nine months of 2008, as compared to the first nine months of 2007, was 
primarily the result of the net contribution from interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities acquired from Community on November 16, 
2007. 

Variances do occur in the net interest margin, as an exact repricing of assets and liabilities is not possible. A further explanation of the impact 
of asset and liability repricing is found in Item 3, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk." 

Provision and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses 

The provision for loan and lease losses is the expense necessary to maintain the allowance for loan and lease losses at a level adequate to 
absorb management’s estimate of probable losses in the loan and lease portfolio. Our provision for loan and lease losses is based upon 
management’s quarterly review of the loan and lease portfolio. The purpose of the review is to assess loan quality, identify impaired loans and 
leases, analyze delinquencies, ascertain loan and lease growth, evaluate potential charge-offs and recoveries, and assess general economic 
conditions in the markets we serve. 

During the first nine months of 2008, we continued to experience a challenging operating environment. Given the economic pressures that 
impact some of our borrowers, we have increased our allowance for loan and lease losses in accordance with our assessment process, which took 
into consideration a $70.2 million increase in nonperforming loans since September 30, 2007 and the rising charge-off level noted below. As 
presented in Table 2, the provision for loan and lease losses was $17.7 million for the third quarter of 2008, and $2.4 million for the third quarter of 
2007. The provision for the first nine months of 2008 was $41.3 million and $6.3 million for the first nine months of 2007.  
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Of the $96.0 million of non-accrual loans and leases at September 30, 2008 (refer to "TABLE 3 – Risk Assets"), $79.2 million, or 82.5%, 
represented non-consumer loans greater than $0.25 million that had been evaluated and considered impaired under SFAS No. 114, "Accounting by 
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan." Of the $79.2 million of impaired loans, $25.6 million, or 32.3%, had no related reserve. The determination that no 
related reserve for these collateral-dependent loans was required was based on the net realizable value of the underlying collateral.  

Net charge-offs for the third quarter of 2008 increased to $8.2 million, or 0.35% of average loans and leases, when compared to net charge-
offs for the third quarter of 2007 of $5.6 million, or 0.39% of average loans and leases. Net charge-offs for the first nine months of 2008 increased to 
$24.3 million, or 0.36% of average loans and leases, when compared to net charge-offs for the first nine months of 2007 of $10.3 million, or 0.25% of 
average loans and leases. 

The allowance for loan and lease losses was 1.12% of period-end loans and leases, or $105.6 million, at September 30, 2008; 1.01% of period-
end loans and leases, or $88.6 million, at December 31, 2007; and 1.00% of period-end loans and leases, or $58.7 million, at September 30, 2007.  

Determining the level of the allowance for probable loan and lease losses at any given point in time is difficult, particularly during uncertain 
economic periods. We must make estimates using assumptions and information that is often subjective and changing rapidly. The review of the 
loan and lease portfolios is a continuing process in light of a changing economy and the dynamics of the banking and regulatory environment. In 
our opinion, the allowance for loan and lease losses is adequate to meet probable incurred loan and lease losses at September 30, 2008. There can 
be no assurance, however, that we will not sustain loan and lease losses in future periods that could be greater than the size of the allowance at 
September 30, 2008. 

Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

TABLE 2 - Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses  
 

Noninterest Income 

Third Quarter 2008 Compared to Third Quarter 2007 

Noninterest income, as a percentage of net interest income plus noninterest income, was 15.0% for the third quarter of 2008, and 31.4% for 
the third quarter of 2007. 
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Three Months Ended

September 30,    
Nine Months Ended

September 30,  

      2008     2007     2008     2007  
     (dollars in thousands)  

Balance - Beginning of period    $ 96,033    $ 61,871    $ 88,569    $ 62,643 
Additions      17,704      2,414      41,306      6,347 

     113,737      64,285      129,875      68,990 
Charge-offs      (9,425)     (6,628)     (29,516)     (13,150)
Recoveries      1,263      1,030      5,216      2,847 

Net charge-offs      (8,162)     (5,598)     (24,300)     (10,303)
Balance - Period end    $ 105,575    $ 58,687    $ 105,575    $ 58,687 

Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans and leases (annualized)      0.35%     0.39%    0.36%     0.25%
Allowance as a percentage of period-end loans and leases      1.12%     1.00%    1.12%     1.00%
Average loans and leases    $9,331,363    $5,712,166    $9,052,373    $5,561,138 
Period-end loans and leases      9,454,094      5,842,883      9,454,094      5,842,883 
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Noninterest income decreased $12.4 million, or 40.8%, for the third quarter of 2008, over the third quarter of 2007. In general, increases in 
noninterest income are attributable to the effects of the Community acquisition on November 16, 2007. Non-Community-related changes of note are 
as follows: 
 

 

 

 

Vehicle origination, servicing, and securitization fees. The 39.9% decrease primarily was the result of a reduction in securitization fees, as 
no auto lease securitization occurred during the first nine months of 2008. 

Wealth management fee income. The 37.0% increase primarily was the result of the contribution from Stratton Management Company, which 
was acquired on April 30, 2008. 

Net realized loss on securities. During the third quarter of 2008, we recognized a $17.5 million other-than-temporary impairment of certain 
corporate synthetic collateralized debt obligations in our available-for-sale investment portfolio. For additional information, refer to the discussion 
under "Financial Condition, Securities Available for Sale." 

Other. During the third quarter of 2008, we reclassified the fair value of cash flow hedges related to a forecasted sale of vehicle leases from 
accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings and recognized a reduction in other noninterest income of $6.5 million. For additional 
information, refer to the discussion under "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, Derivative Financial Instruments and
Hedging Activities." 

Nine Months ended September 30, 2008 Compared to Nine Months ended September 30, 2007 

Noninterest income, as a percentage of net interest income plus noninterest income, was 26.1% for the nine-month period ended 
September 30, 2008, and 30.3% for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2007.  

Noninterest income increased $21.8 million, or 26.0%, for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2008, over the comparable period in 
2007. In general, increases in noninterest income are attributable to the effects of the Community acquisition on November 16, 2007. Non-
Community-related changes of note are as follows:  
 

 

 

 

 

Vehicle origination, servicing, and securitization fees. The 33.4% decrease primarily was the result of a reduction in securitization fees, as 
no auto lease securitization occurred during the first nine months of 2008. 
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  •   Decreased vehicle origination, servicing, and securitization fees of $1.5 million; 

 
•   Increased wealth management fee income (includes asset management fees, income from fiduciary-related activities, and commissions 

on brokerage, life insurance, and annuity sales) of $3.0 million; 

  •   Increased net realized loss on securities of $17.6 million; and 

  •   Decreased other of $2.5 million. 

  •   Decreased vehicle origination, servicing, and securitization fees of $3.9 million; 

 
•   Increased wealth management fee income (includes asset management fees, income from fiduciary-related activities, and commissions 

on brokerage, life insurance, and annuity sales) of $7.5 million; 

  •   Decreased gains on sales of loans and leases of $1.9 million; 

  •   Increased net realized loss on securities of $5.6 million; and 

  •   Increased other of $9.2 million. 
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Wealth management fee income. The 32.1% increase primarily was the result of the contribution from Stratton Management Company, which 
was acquired on April 30, 2008. 

Gains on sale of loans and leases. During the first quarter of 2007, we recognized a $2.7 million gain in an auto lease securitization. There 
were no securitization transactions during the first nine months of 2008. 

Net realized loss on securities. During the third quarter of 2008, we recognized a $17.5 million other-than-temporary impairment of certain 
corporate synthetic collateralized debt obligations in our available-for-sale investment portfolio. For additional information, refer to the discussion 
under "Financial Condition, Securities Available for Sale." During the second quarter of 2007, we restructured our available-for-sale investment 
portfolio and recognized an $11.8 million loss on the sale of selected securities. 

Other. During the third quarter of 2008, we reclassified the fair value of cash flow hedges related to a forecasted sale of vehicle leases from 
accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings and recognized a reduction in other noninterest income of $6.5 million. For additional 
information, refer to the discussion under "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, Derivative Financial Instruments and
Hedging Activities." 

Noninterest Expenses 

Third Quarter 2008 Compared to Third Quarter 2007 

Noninterest expenses increased $29.7 million, or 45.0%, from $66.1 million for the third quarter of 2007, to $95.8 million for the third quarter of 
2008. In general, increases in noninterest expense are attributable to the effects of the Community acquisition on November 16, 2007. Non-
Community-related changes of note are as follows:  

Salaries and employee benefits. Included in salaries and employee benefits is a $1.6 million restructuring charge related to the consolidation 
of our three bank subsidiaries into one bank subsidiary. 

Other. Included in other noninterest expenses is a $2.1 million charge to mitigate losses of customers of VFAM who held positions in a 
money market mutual fund managed by an independent mutual fund company. In September 2008, the Securities and Exchange Commission 
granted an order, requested by the independent mutual fund manager, to suspend all redemption requests for the fund and to allow for the 
postponement of redemption payments, temporarily leaving retail investors without access to their short-term cash. Based upon information from 
the fund manager, we believe that the fund’s net asset value upon an orderly liquidation will be ninety-seven cents per share. Should customers 
receive less than one dollar per share, our $2.1 million commitment will be available to mitigate our customers’ losses in the fund, up to three cents 
per share. 

Nine Months ended September 30, 2008 Compared to Nine Months ended September 30, 2007 

Noninterest expenses increased $79.1 million, or 40.3%, from $198.3 million for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2007, to $278.1 
million for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2008. In general, increases in noninterest expense are attributable to the effects of the 
Community acquisition on November 16, 2007. Non-Community-related changes of note are as follows:  

Salaries and employee benefits. Included in salaries and employee benefits is a $1.6 million restructuring charge recorded in September 2008 
related to the consolidation of our three bank subsidiaries into one bank subsidiary. 

Other. Included in other noninterest expenses is a $2.1 million charge recorded in September 2008 to mitigate losses of customers of VFAM 
who held positions in a money market mutual fund managed by an independent mutual fund company. In September 2008, the Securities and 
Exchange Commission granted an order, requested by the independent mutual fund manager, to suspend all redemption requests for the fund and 
to allow for the postponement of redemption payments, temporarily leaving retail investors without access to their short-term cash. Based upon 
information from the fund manager, we believe that the fund’s net asset value upon an orderly  
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liquidation will be ninety-seven cents per share. Should customers receive less than one dollar per share, our $2.1 million commitment will be 
available to mitigate our customers’ losses in the fund, up to three cents per share.  

Income Taxes 

Our effective tax rate for the third quarter of 2008 was (11.83%) benefit. Our effective tax rate for the third quarter of 2007 was 28.7%. Our 
effective tax rate for the first nine months of 2008 was 24.9%. Our effective tax rate for the first nine months of 2007 was 29.6%. The decrease was 
due to an increase in tax-advantaged income relative to total income for the first nine months of 2008, as compared to tax-advantaged income 
relative to total income for the first nine months of 2007. The increase in tax-advantaged income is due, in part, to the acquisition of Community, 
which had a large municipal bond portfolio. 

Financial Condition 

Summary of September 30, 2008 Compared to December 31, 2007 

Total assets at September 30, 2008 were $13.6 billion, an increase of $558.3 million, as compared to total assets at December 31, 2007. Total 
deposits increased $249.0 million at September 30, 2008, from December 31, 2007. Equity capital was $1.7 billion at September 30, 2008, or $19.69 per 
share, and $1.7 billion, or $20.12 per share, at December 31, 2007. The decline in book value per share primarily was the result of unrealized losses in 
our investment securities portfolio that were recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income in the equity section of our balance sheet. For 
additional information about our investment securities portfolio, refer to "Note 3. Investment Securities" to the financial statements appearing in 
Part I, Item 1, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.  

Fair Value Measurements and The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

Effective January 1, 2008, we adopted FAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" and FAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities." At September 30, 2008, Susquehanna had made no elections to use fair value as an alternative measurement for 
selected financial assets and financial liabilities not previously carried at fair value. For additional information about our financial assets and 
financial liabilities carried at fair value, refer to "Note 12. Fair Value Disclosures" to the financial statements appearing in Part I, Item 1, of this 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.  

Securities Available for Sale 

In September 2008, we recorded a pre-tax impairment charge of $17.5 million related to two synthetic collateralized debt obligations held in our 
investment portfolio. Each security has a par value of $10.0 million and one hundred underlying reference companies. Through August 31, 2008, 
there were no credit events (i.e. bankruptcies, conservatorships, or receiverships) related to any of the reference companies. Given the significant 
developments that have affected the market since August 31, 2008, a number of credit events have reduced the fair value of one security to 12.5% 
of par as of September 30, 2008, and the fair value of the other security to 12.0% of par as of September 30, 2008. We believe that it is probable that 
we will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of these securities, and we anticipate that both securities will 
receive a below-investment-grade rating by the rating agencies. These are the only two securities of this type that we currently hold in our $2.0 
billion investment portfolio. 

For additional information about our investment securities portfolio, refer to "Note 3. Investment Securities" and "Note 12. Fair Value 
Disclosures" to the financial statements appearing in Part I, Item 1, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.  

Loans and Leases 

Loan demand in our market area remains strong. Consequently, loans and leases, net of unearned income, increased 8.0%, from $8.8 billion at 
December 31, 2007 to $9.5 billion at September 30, 2008. In particular, 
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commercial, financial, and agricultural loans grew 11.5%, from $1.8 billion at December 31, 2007, to $2.0 billion at September 30, 2008; real-estate-
secured commercial loans grew 6.5%, from $2.7 billion at December 31, 2007, to $2.8 billion at September 30, 2008; and leases grew 48.3%, from 
$451.7 million at December 31, 2007, to $669.9 million at September 30, 2008. 

In September 2008, we announced that, due to adverse market conditions, our previously disclosed plan to sell vehicle leases would not 
proceed. As a result, the $238.4 million in vehicle leases held for sale at December 31, 2007 and those subsequently originated are now classified as 
held for investment. 

Risk Assets 

Total nonperforming assets increased $38.0 million, from December 31, 2007 to September 30, 2008, as presented in TABLE 3.  

Nonaccrual loans and leases increased from $56.7 million at December 31, 2007, to $96.0 million at September 30, 2008. The net increase was 
primarily the result of nine credits totaling $44.2 million being placed on nonaccrual status in the first nine months of 2008. Most of these credits 
are real estate related in our Maryland market. Consequently, total nonperforming assets as a percentage of period-end loans and leases plus other 
real estate owned increased from 0.81% at December 31, 2007 to 1.15% at September 30, 2008. 

Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

TABLE 3 - Risk Assets  
 

Deposits 

Total deposits increased 2.8% from December 31, 2007 to September 30, 2008. An increase in brokered certificates of deposit of $229.7 million, 
however, contributed to this overall net increase. The remaining slight net change in total deposits is the result of a very competitive environment 
for deposit generation. 

Short-term Borrowings and Federal Home Loan Bank Borrowings  
Short-term borrowings increased $170.1 million from December 31, 2007 to September 30, 2008, and FHLB borrowings increased $209.2 million 

during the same time period. 

Since our loan growth has been greater than our deposit growth, we have used short-term borrowings, primarily in the form of federal funds 
purchased, FHLB borrowings, and brokered certificates of deposit, to fund loans. 
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September 30,

2008    
December 31,

2007    
September 30,

2007  
     (dollars in thousands)  

Nonperforming assets:       

Nonaccrual loans and leases    $ 96,022    $ 56,741    $ 26,556 
Restructured loans      2,592      2,582      1,867 
Other real estate owned      10,671      11,927      10,331 

Total nonperforming assets    $ 109,285    $ 71,250    $ 38,754 

As a percentage of period-end loans and leases plus other real estate owned      1.15%     0.81%    0.66%
Allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans and 

leases      107.06%     149.30%    206.48%
Loans and leases contractually past due 90 days and still accruing    $ 20,313    $ 12,199    $ 9,459 
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Capital Adequacy 

Capital elements are segmented into two tiers. Tier 1 capital represents shareholders’ equity plus junior subordinated debentures, reduced by 
excludable intangibles. Tier 2 capital represents certain allowable long-term debt, the portion of the allowance for loan and lease losses and the 
allowance for credit losses on off-balance-sheet credit exposures equal to 1.25% of risk-adjusted assets, and 45% of the unrealized gain on equity 
securities. The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital is "total risk-based capital."  

The minimum Tier 1 capital ratio is 4%; our ratio at September 30, 2008 was 8.63%. The minimum total capital (Tiers 1 and 2) ratio is 8%; our 
ratio at September 30, 2008 was 10.86%. The minimum leverage ratio is 4%; our leverage ratio at September 30, 2008 was 7.50%. We and each of our 
bank subsidiaries have leverage and risk-weighted ratios well in excess of regulatory minimums, and each entity is considered "well capitalized" 
under regulatory guidelines. 

Securitizations and Off-Balance-Sheet Financings  
The following table summarizes the components of loans and leases serviced: 

 

 

Securitization Transactions 

We use the securitization of financial assets as a source of funding and a means to manage capital. Hann and the banking subsidiaries sell 
beneficial interests in automobile leases and related vehicles and home equity loans to qualified special purpose entities (each a "QSPE"). These 
transactions are accounted for as sales under the guidelines of FAS No. 140, "Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and 
Extinguishments of Liabilities (a replacement of FASB Statement No. 125)," and a net gain or loss is recognized at the time of the initial sale.  

For additional information concerning the accounting policies for initially measuring interest-only strips, the characteristics of securitization 
transactions, including the gain or loss from sale, the key assumptions used in measuring the fair value of the interest-only strips, and descriptions 
of prior years’ securitization transactions, see the following sections of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007:  
 

 

 

Also see "Note 11. Securitization Activity" to the financial statements appearing in Part I, Item 1, of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.  
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As of
September 30,

2008   

As of
September 30,

2007
     (dollars in thousands)

Lease Securitization Transactions*    $ 150,065   $ 573,118
Home Equity Loan
Securitization Transactions*      294,716     355,616
Agency Arrangements and Lease Sales*      37,070     72,406
Leases and Loans Held in Portfolio      9,454,094     5,842,883
Total Leases and Loans Serviced    $ 9,935,945   $ 6,844,023

* Off-balance-sheet 

  •   "Securitizations and Off-Balance-Sheet Financings" on pages 54 through 62; 

 
•   "Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" under the captions Asset Securitizations and Servicing Fees under 

Securitization Transactions, Agency Agreements, and Lease Sales on pages 79 and 80; and 

  •   "Note 21. Securitization Activity" on pages 109 through 114. 
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The types of market risk exposures generally faced by banking entities include equity market price risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign 
currency risk, and commodity price risk. 

Due to the nature of our operations, foreign currency and commodity price risk are not significant to us. However, in addition to general 
banking risks, we have other risks that are related to vehicle leasing, asset securitizations, and off-balance sheet financing that are also discussed 
above. 

Equity Market Price Risk 

Equity market price risk is the risk related to market fluctuations of equity prices in the securities markets. While we do not have significant 
risk in our investment portfolio, market price fluctuations may affect fee income generated through our asset management operations. Generally, 
our fee structure is based on the market value of assets being managed at specific time frames. If market values decline, our fee income may also 
decline. 

Liquidity Risk 

The maintenance of adequate liquidity—the ability to meet the cash requirements of our customers and other financial commitments—is a 
fundamental aspect of our asset/liability management strategy. Our policy of diversifying our funding sources—purchased funds, repurchase 
agreements, and deposit accounts—allows us to avoid undue concentration in any single financial market and also to avoid heavy funding 
requirements within short periods of time. At September 30, 2008, our bank subsidiaries had approximately $755.5 million available to them under 
collateralized lines of credit with various FHLBs; and approximately $896.3 million more would have been available provided that additional 
collateral had been pledged. 

Over the past few years, as an additional source of liquidity, we periodically entered into securitization transactions in which we sold the 
beneficial interests in loans and leases to qualified special purpose entities (QSPEs). Since our last securitization, which occurred in February 2007, 
adverse market conditions have made such transactions extremely difficult, as evidenced by our inability to complete the securitization forecasted 
for 2008. However, at September 30, 2008, we were in the process of pledging the leases previously held for sale to obtain collateralized borrowing 
availability at the Federal Reserve’s Discount Window and Term Auction Facility. On October 3, 2008, we were notified by the Federal Reserve 
Bank of Philadelphia that we were granted collateralized availability of $334.2 million. 

Liquidity, however, is not entirely dependent on increasing our liability balances. Liquidity is also evaluated by taking into consideration 
maturing or readily marketable assets. Unrestricted short-term investments totaled $105.7 million at September 30, 2008 and represented additional 
sources of liquidity. 

Interest Rate Risk 

The management of interest rate risk focuses on controlling the risk to net interest income and the associated net interest margin as the result 
of changing market rates and spreads. Interest rate sensitivity is the matching or mismatching of the repricing and rate structure of the interest-
bearing assets and liabilities. Our goal is to control risk exposure to changing rates within management’s accepted guidelines to maintain an 
acceptable level of risk exposure in support of consistent earnings. 

We employ a variety of methods to monitor interest rate risk. These methods include basic gap analysis, which points to directional 
exposure, routine rate shocks simulation, and evaluation of the change in economic value of equity. Board directed guidelines have been adopted 
for both the rate shock simulations and economic value of equity exposure limits. By dividing the assets and liabilities into three groups, fixed rate, 
floating rate and those which reprice only at our discretion, strategies are developed to control the exposure to interest rate fluctuations.  

Our policy, as approved by our Board of Directors, is designed so that we experience no more than a 15% decline in net interest income and 
no more than a 30% decline in the economic value of equity for a 300 basis point 
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shock (immediate change) in interest rates. The assumptions used for the interest rate shock analysis are reviewed and updated at least quarterly. 
Based upon the most recent interest rate shock analysis, we were within the Board’s approved guidelines at a down 300 basis point shock and an 
up 300 basis point shock. At September 30, 2008, our asset/liability position was close to neutral. 

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities 

Beginning in February 2007, we entered into a series of amortizing interest rate swaps that reached an aggregate notional amount of $248.7 
million at September 5, 2008. For purposes of our consolidated financial statements, the entire notional amount of the swaps was designated as a 
cash flow hedge of expected future cash flows associated with a forecasted sale of auto leases. In September 2008, we announced that, due to 
adverse market conditions, this forecasted sale would not occur, and the interest rate swap agreements were terminated. In accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, we reclassified the fair value of these swaps from accumulated other comprehensive loss to earnings and 
recognized a reduction in pre-tax income of $6.5 million.  

Beginning in 2007, we instituted a program whereby we enter into transactions with our commercial loan customers that are intended to 
offset or mitigate their interest rate risk. These transactions are limited to conventional interest rate swaps, interest rate caps, and interest rate 
collars; and upon issuance, all of these customer swaps are immediately economically hedged by offsetting derivative contracts, such that we 
have minimal net interest rate risk exposure resulting from the transaction. At September 30, 2008, the notional amount of interest rate swaps with 
our customers totaled $235.0 million. Derivatives with a fair value of $3.4 million were included in other assets, and derivatives with a fair value of 
$2.8 million were recorded in other liabilities. 

In June 2005, we entered into two $25.0 million interest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate risk exposure on $50.0 million of variable-rate 
debt. One of these derivatives matured in June 2008. The risk management objective with respect to this type of interest rate swap is to hedge the 
risk of changes in our cash flow attributable to changes in the LIBOR swap rate. At September 30, 2008, the unrealized loss, net of taxes, recorded 
in accumulated other comprehensive income totaled $0.2 million. 

The following table summarizes our derivative financial instruments as of September 30, 2008: 
 

Vehicle Leasing Residual Value Risk 

In an effort to manage the vehicle residual value risk arising from the auto leasing business of Hann and our affiliate banks, Hann and the 
banks have entered into arrangements with Auto Lenders pursuant to which Hann or a bank, as applicable, effectively transferred to Auto Lenders 
all residual value risk of its respective auto lease portfolio, and all residual value risk on any new leases originated over the term of the applicable 
agreement. Auto Lenders, which was formed in 1990, is a used-vehicle remarketer with four retail locations in New Jersey and has access to various 
wholesale facilities throughout the country. Under these arrangements, Auto Lenders agrees to purchase the beneficial interest in all vehicles 
returned by the obligors at the scheduled expiration of the related leases for a purchase price equal to the stated residual value of such vehicles. 
Stated residual values of new leases are 
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Notional Amount    Fair Value    Variable Rate    Fixed Rate  
(dollars in thousands)  

  Cash Flow Hedges       

$                  25,000   ($ 363)  Three-month LIBOR    4.083%

  Instruments Not Designated as Hedges:   

  $235,036   ($ 2,794)  One-month LIBOR    4.86% to 7.42% 
  235,036     3,408    One-month LIBOR    4.86% to 7.42% 
$ 470,072   $ 614      
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set in accordance with the standards approved in advance by Auto Lenders. Under a servicing agreement with Auto Lenders, Hann also agrees to 
make monthly guaranty payments to Auto Lenders based upon a negotiated schedule covering a three-year period. At the end of each year, the 
servicing agreement may be renewed by the mutual agreement of the parties for an additional one-year term, beyond the current three-year term, 
subject to renegotiation of the payments for the additional year. During the renewal process, we periodically obtain competitive quotes from third 
parties to determine the best remarketing and/or residual guarantee alternatives for Hann and our bank affiliates. 

 
 

Susquehanna’s management, with the participation of Susquehanna’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the 
effectiveness of Susquehanna’s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, 
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered 
by this report have been designed and are functioning effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by 
us in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in 
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Susquehanna believes that a control system, no matter how well designed and 
operated, cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute 
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected. 

 

No change in Susquehanna’s internal control over financial reporting occurred during the most recent fiscal quarter that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Susquehanna’s internal control over financial reporting.  

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION  
 

There are no material proceedings to which Susquehanna or any of our subsidiaries are a party or by which, to Susquehanna’s knowledge, 
we, or any of our subsidiaries, are threatened. All legal proceedings presently pending or threatened against Susquehanna or our subsidiaries 
involve routine litigation incidental to our business or that of the subsidiary involved and are not material in respect to the amount in controversy.  
 

There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2007. However, readers should carefully consider the following additional risk factors: 

Difficult Conditions in the Capital Markets and the Economy Generally May Materially Adversely Affect Our Business and Results of 
Operations and We Do Not Expect These Conditions to Improve in the Near Future 

Our results of operations are materially affected by conditions in the capital markets and the economy generally. The capital and credit 
markets have been experiencing extreme volatility and disruption for more than twelve months. In recent weeks, the volatility and disruption have 
reached unprecedented levels. In many cases, these markets have produced downward pressure on stock prices of, and credit availability to 
certain companies without regard to those companies’ underlying financial strength.  
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Recently, concerns over inflation, energy costs, geopolitical issues, the availability and cost of credit, the U.S. mortgage market and a 
declining U.S. real estate market have contributed to increased volatility and diminished expectations for the economy and the capital and credit 
markets going forward. These factors, combined with volatile oil prices, declining business and consumer confidence and increased 
unemployment, have precipitated an economic slowdown and induced fears of a possible recession. In addition, the fixed-income markets are 
experiencing a period of extreme volatility which has negatively impacted market liquidity conditions. Initially, the concerns on the part of market 
participants were focused on the subprime segment of the mortgage-backed securities market. However, these concerns have since expanded to 
include a broad range of mortgage-and asset-backed and other fixed income securities, including those rated investment grade, the U.S. and 
international credit and interbank money markets generally, and a wide range of financial institutions and markets, asset classes and sectors. As a 
result, the market for fixed income instruments has experienced decreased liquidity, increased price volatility, credit downgrade events, and 
increased probability of default. Securities that are less liquid are more difficult to value and may be hard to dispose of. Domestic and international 
equity markets have also been experiencing heightened volatility and turmoil, with issuers (such as our company) that have exposure to the real 
estate, mortgage and credit markets particularly affected. These events and the continuing market upheavals, may have an adverse effect on us, in 
part because we have a large investment portfolio and also because we are dependent upon customer behavior. Our revenues are likely to decline 
in such circumstances, and our profit margins could erode. In addition, in the event of extreme and prolonged market events, such as the global 
credit crisis, we could incur significant losses. Even in the absence of a market downturn, we are exposed to substantial risk of loss due to market 
volatility. 

Factors such as consumer spending, business investment, government spending, the volatility and strength of the capital markets, and 
inflation all affect the business and economic environment and, ultimately, the amount and profitability of our business. In an economic downturn 
characterized by higher unemployment, lower family income, lower corporate earnings, lower business investment and lower consumer spending, 
the demand for our financial products could be adversely affected. Adverse changes in the economy could affect earnings negatively and could 
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. The current mortgage crisis has also raised the 
possibility of future legislative and regulatory actions in addition to the recent enactment of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the 
"EESA") that could further impact our business. We cannot predict whether or when such actions may occur, or what impact, if any, such actions 
could have on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

There Can Be No Assurance that Actions of the U.S. Government, Federal Reserve and Other Governmental and Regulatory Bodies For the 
Purpose of Stabilizing the Financial Markets Will Achieve the Intended Effect 

In response to the financial crises affecting the banking system and financial markets and going concern threats to investment banks and 
other financial institutions, on October 3, 2008, President Bush signed the EESA into law. Pursuant to the EESA, the U.S. Treasury has the 
authority to utilize up to $700 billion to purchase distressed assets from financial institutions or infuse capital into financial institutions for the 
purpose of stabilizing the financial markets. The Federal Government, Federal Reserve and other governmental and regulatory bodies have taken or 
are considering taking other actions to address the financial crisis. There can be no assurance as to what impact such actions will have on the 
financial markets, including the extreme levels of volatility currently being experienced. Such continued volatility could materially and adversely 
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations, or the trading price of our common stock. 

The Soundness of Other Financial Institutions Could Adversely Affect Us 

Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, or other relationships. We have exposure to many 
different industries and counterparties, and we routinely execute transactions with counterparties in the financial services industry, including 
brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment banks, mutual and hedge funds, and other institutional clients. Many of these transactions 
expose us to credit risk in the event of default of our counterparty or client. In addition, our credit risk may be exacerbated when the collateral held 
by us cannot be realized upon or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the loan or derivative exposure due us. Losses 
related to these credit risks could materially and adversely affect our results of operations or earnings. 
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Recent Negative Developments in the Financial Industry And the Credit Markets May Subject Us to Additional Regulation. 

As a result of the recent global financial crisis, the potential exists for new federal or state laws and regulations regarding lending and 
funding practices and liquidity standards to be promulgated, and bank regulatory agencies are expected to be active in responding to concerns 
and trends identified in examinations, including the expected issuance of many formal enforcement orders. Negative developments in the financial 
industry and the domestic and international credit markets, and the impact of new legislation in response to those developments, may negatively 
impact our operations by restricting our business operations, including our ability to originate or sell loans, and may adversely impact our financial 
performance. 

Our Future Growth May Require Us to Raise Additional Capital in the Future, But That Capital May Not Be Available When It Is Needed.  
We are required by regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our operations. We anticipate that our current 

capital levels will satisfy our regulatory requirements for the foreseeable future. We may at some point, however, need to raise additional capital to 
support our continued growth. Our ability to raise additional capital will depend, in part, on conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are 
outside our control, and on our financial performance. Accordingly, we may be unable to raise additional capital, if and when needed, on terms 
acceptable to us, or at all. If we cannot raise additional capital when needed, our ability to further expand our operations through internal growth 
and acquisitions could be materially impaired. In addition, if we decide to raise additional equity capital, your interest could be diluted.  

A Prolonged Economic Downturn, Especially One Affecting Our Geographic Market Areas, Could Reduce Our Customer Base, Our Level of 
Deposits and Demand for Financial Products, such as Loans. 

We are in uncertain economic times, including uncertainty with respect to financial markets that have been volatile as a result of sub-prime 
mortgage related and other matters. Our success significantly depends upon the growth in population, income levels, deposits and housing starts 
in our geographic markets. If the communities in which we operate do not grow, or if prevailing economic conditions locally or nationally are 
unfavorable, our business may not succeed. A prolonged economic downturn would likely contribute to the deterioration of the credit quality of 
our loan portfolio and reduce our level of customer deposits, which in turn would hurt our business. If the current economic downturn in the 
economy as a whole, or in our geographic market areas, continues for a prolonged period, borrowers may be less likely to repay their loans as 
scheduled or at all. Moreover, the value of real estate or other collateral that may secure our loans could be adversely affected. Unlike many larger 
institutions, we are not able to spread the risks of unfavorable local economic conditions across a large number of diversified economies and 
geographic locations. A prolonged economic downturn could, therefore, result in losses that could materially and adversely affect our business.  
 

None 

 

None 

 

None. 

 

None 
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The Exhibits filed as part of this report are as follows: 
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Item 6. Exhibits. 

10.1

  

Description of elimination of the cash incentive component of the Susquehanna Incentive Plan for all participants during the fiscal year 
ending December 31, 2008 is incorporated by reference to Item 5.02(e) of Susquehanna’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed September 29, 
2008.

31.1    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by Chief Executive Officer is filed herewith as Exhibit 31.1. 

31.2    Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by Chief Financial Officer is filed herewith as Exhibit 31.2. 

32    Section1350 Certifications. Filed herewith as Exhibit 32.
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by 
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
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    SUSQUEHANNA BANCSHARES, INC.

November 6, 2008     /s/ William J. Reuter
    William J. Reuter
    Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

November 6, 2008     /s/ Drew K. Hostetter
    Drew K. Hostetter
    Executive Vice President, Treasurer, and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS 

I, William J. Reuter, certify that: 
 

 

 

 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: November 6, 2008 
 

 

 

Exhibit Numbers   Description and Method of Filing

10.1

 

Description of elimination of the cash incentive component of the Susquehanna Incentive Plan for all participants during the 
fiscal year ending December 31, 2008 is incorporated by reference to Item 5.02(e) of Susquehanna’s Current Report on Form 8-K, 
filed September 29, 2008.

31.1   Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by Chief Executive Officer is filed herewith as Exhibit 31.1.

31.2   Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification by Chief Financial Officer is filed herewith as Exhibit 31.2.

32      Section 1350 Certifications. Filed herewith as Exhibit 32.

Section 2: EX-31.1 (SECTION 302 CEO CERTIFICATION) 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

/s/ William J. Reuter
William J. Reuter
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS, continued 

I, Drew K. Hostetter, certify that: 
 

 

 

 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting. 

Date: November 6, 2008 
 

Exhibit 32

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
Relating to a Periodic Report Containing Financial Statements 

Each of, William J. Reuter, Chief Executive Officer, and Drew K. Hostetter, Chief Financial Officer, of Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc. (the 
"Company"), hereby certifies that, based on his knowledge: 

(1) The Company’s periodic report containing financial statements on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 (the "Form 10-Q") 
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and 

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company. 

Date: As of November 6, 2008 

Section 3: EX-31.2 (SECTION 302 CFO CERTIFICATION) 

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Susquehanna Bancshares, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects 
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal controls over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

/s/ Drew K. Hostetter
Drew K. Hostetter
Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial 
Officer

Section 4: EX-32 (SECTION 906 CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION) 



 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER     CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

/s/ William J. Reuter     /s/ Drew K. Hostetter
William J. Reuter     Drew K. Hostetter


